

Date Submitted: 10/21/21 4:27 pm

Viewing: **R-ADM-B.A. : R-ADM-Program-B.A.
First Year Admission to B.A. (All)**

Last approved: 03/26/21 10:46 am

Last edit: 10/21/21 4:27 pm

Last modified by: nataliephelan

Changes proposed by: nataliephelan

In Workflow

1. REGS ADM Review
2. PRE SCCASP
3. SCCASP
4. Senate
5. PRE CalEditor
6. CalEditor

Approval Path

1. 10/21/21 4:30 pm
Jen Sugar (jensugar):
Approved for REGS ADM Review
2. 10/27/21 3:18 pm
Natalie Phelan
(nataliephelan):
Approved for PRE SCCASP
3. 11/02/21 5:15 pm
Erika Strathearn
(erikastrathearn):
Approved for SCCASP

History

1. Mar 23, 2017 by Sandra Bauer (sandrabauer)
2. Mar 23, 2017 by Sandra Bauer (sandrabauer)
3. Mar 23, 2017 by Sandra Bauer (sandrabauer)
4. Mar 23, 2017 by Sandra Bauer (sandrabauer)
5. Mar 23, 2017 by Sandra Bauer (sandrabauer)
6. Mar 23, 2017 by Sandra Bauer (sandrabauer)
7. Mar 23, 2017 by Sandra Bauer (sandrabauer)
8. Mar 29, 2017 by Sandra Bauer (sandrabauer)
9. Apr 10, 2017 by Sandra Bauer (sandrabauer)
10. Mar 26, 2021 by Sarah Cleary (sarahcleary)

Calendar Pages Using this
Program

[Philosophy](#)
[Sociology](#)
[Geography](#)
[Criminology and Criminal Justice](#)
[History and Theory of Architecture](#)
[European and Russian Studies](#)
[English](#)
[Law](#)
[Political Science](#)
[African Studies](#)
[Music](#)
[Film Studies](#)
[Canadian Studies](#)
[Women's and Gender Studies](#)
[Art History](#)
[Greek and Roman Studies](#)
[Geomatics](#)
[Indigenous Studies](#)
[Psychology](#)
[Biology](#)
[History](#)
[Anthropology](#)
[Environmental Studies](#)
[Human Rights and Social Justice](#)
[Religion](#)
[French](#)
[Applied Linguistics and Discourse Studies](#)
[Childhood and Youth Studies](#)
[Linguistics \(Bachelor of Arts\)](#)
[Linguistics](#)
[Open Studies](#)
[Arts](#)

Effective Date	2022-23
Workflow	majormod minormod
Program Code	R-ADM-B.A.
Level	Undergraduate
Faculty	Not Applicable
Academic Unit	Regulations: Admissions
Degree	
Title	R-ADM-Program-B.A. First Year Admission to B.A. (All)

Program Requirements

Admissions Information

Admission requirements are based on the Ontario High School System. Prospective students can view the admission requirements through the Admissions website at admissions.carleton.ca. The overall average required for admission is determined each year on a program-by-program basis. Holding the minimum admission requirements only establishes eligibility for consideration; higher averages are required for admission to programs for which the demand for places by qualified applicants exceeds the number of places available. All programs have limited enrolment and admission is not guaranteed. Some programs may also require specific course prerequisites and prerequisite averages and/or supplementary admission portfolios. Consult admissions.carleton.ca for further details.

Note: Courses listed as *recommended* are not mandatory for admission. Students who do not follow the recommendations will not be disadvantaged in the admission process.

Admission Requirements

Degrees

- Bachelor of Arts (B.A.) (Honours) ~~(B.A.)(Honours)~~
- Bachelor of Arts (B.A.)

First Year

For B.A. and B.A. (Honours)

The Ontario Secondary School Diploma (OSSD) or equivalent including a minimum of six 4U or M courses. The six 4U or M courses must include a 4U course in English (or *anglais*). For applicants whose first language is not English, the requirement of English can also be met under the conditions outlined in the section “English Language Requirements” in the Admissions Requirements and Procedures section of this Calendar.

Biology

For the major in Biology in the B.A. program, in addition to the 4U English, a 4U course in Chemistry is required. Advanced Functions, and Calculus and Vectors are recommended.

Advanced Standing

Applications ~~The cut-off average~~ for admission **beyond first year** will be **assessed on their merits.** ~~set annually and will normally be above the minimum requirement.~~ Applicants must normally be *Eligible to Continue* in their year level, in addition to meeting the GPA thresholds described in Section 3.1.10 of the *Academic Regulations of the University*. Advanced standing will be granted only for those subjects assessed as being appropriate for the program and the stream selected.

Co-op Option

Direct Admission to the 1st Year of the Co-op Option

Co-op is available for the following Majors in the B.A. (Honours) degree: Anthropology, English, Environmental Studies, European and Russian Studies, French, Geography, Geomatics, History, Law, Political Science, Psychology, Sociology.

Applicants must:

1. meet the required overall admission cut-off average and prerequisite course average. These averages may be higher than the stated minimum requirements;
2. be registered as a full-time student in the Bachelor of Arts Honours with one of the majors listed above;
3. be eligible to work in Canada (for off-campus work placements).

Meeting the above requirements only establishes eligibility for admission to the program. The prevailing job market may limit enrolment in the co-op option. Students should also note that hiring priority is given to Canadian citizens for co-op positions in the Public Service Commission.

Note: continuation requirements for students previously admitted to the co-op option and admission requirements for the co-op option after beginning the program are described in the Co-operative Education Regulations section of this Calendar.

~~Applicants falling slightly below the cut-off average will be considered on an individual basis to determine whether there are special circumstances that would permit their admission. Students who feel that their high school grade average does not reflect their potential may apply to the Enriched Support Program (see the Enriched Support Program section of this Calendar).~~

New Resources	No New Resources
Summary	<p>1. With J. Sugar: implementing new Admissions Information paragraph which is common to all program admission pages; reworded Advanced Standing section to refer to chart showing minimum CGPA thresholds; improved formatting.</p> <p>2. Co-op section updated to reflect current offerings.</p>
Rationale for change	<p>New boilerplate language has been written and inserted into all the degree-specific admission pages. The advanced standing section has been rewritten to incorporate ACE terminology and to include a link to the academic regulations so that minimum CGPA thresholds are accessible. The co-op section has been updated to reflect current program names, programs that offer co-op, and to remove the needless specification of concentration information.</p>
Transition/Implementation	
Program reviewer comments	

Key: 1560

Date Submitted: 10/21/21 4:50 pm

Viewing: **TBD-1360 : R-ADM-Program-B.A.S.**

Last approved: 10/17/16 11:57 am

Last edit: 10/21/21 4:50 pm

Last modified by: nataliephelan

Changes proposed by: nataliephelan

In Workflow

1. REGS ADM Review
2. PRE SCCASP
3. SCCASP
4. Senate
5. PRE CalEditor
6. CalEditor

Approval Path

1. 10/21/21 4:49 pm
Natalie Phelan
(nataliephelan): Rollback to Initiator
2. 10/22/21 9:37 am
Jen Sugar (jensugar):
Approved for REGS ADM Review
3. 10/27/21 3:18 pm
Natalie Phelan
(nataliephelan):
Approved for PRE SCCASP
4. 11/02/21 5:15 pm
Erika Strathearn
(erikastrathearn):
Approved for SCCASP

History

1. Jan 21, 2016 by Sandra Bauer (sandrabauer)
2. Oct 17, 2016 by Sandra Bauer (sandrabauer)

Calendar Pages Using this Program [Architectural Studies](#)
[Architectural Studies](#)

Effective Date 2022-23

Workflow **majormod**

Program Code TBD-1360

Level Undergraduate

Faculty **Faculty of Engineering and Design** Not Applicable

Academic Unit

Regulations: Admissions ~~Azrieli School of Architecture and Urbanism~~
~~Regulations: Admissions~~

Degree

Title

R-ADM-Program-B.A.S.

Program Requirements

Admissions Information

Admission requirements are based on the Ontario High School System. Prospective students can view the admission requirements through the Admissions website at admissions.carleton.ca. The overall average required for admission is determined each year on a program-by-program basis. Holding the minimum admission requirements only establishes eligibility for consideration; higher averages are required for admission to programs for which the demand for places by qualified applicants exceeds the number of places available. All programs have limited enrolment and admission is not guaranteed. Some programs may also require specific course prerequisites and prerequisite averages and/or supplementary admission portfolios. Consult admissions.carleton.ca for further details.

~~Degree Bachelor of Architectural Studies (B.A.S.) Admission Requirements First Year The Ontario Secondary School Diploma (OSSD) or equivalent including a minimum of six 4U or M courses. The six 4U or M courses must include English, Physics and Advanced Functions. Calculus and Vectors is strongly recommended.~~ Note: Courses listed as *recommended* are not mandatory for admission. Students who do not follow the recommendations will not be disadvantaged in the admission process.

Degree

- Bachelor of Architectural Studies (B.A.S.)

Admission Requirements

First Year

The Ontario Secondary School Diploma (OSSD) or equivalent including a minimum of six 4U or M courses. The six 4U or M courses must include English, Physics, ~~Physics~~ and Advanced Functions. Calculus and Vectors is strongly recommended.

Note: a portfolio is required. Detailed information about the portfolio requirements can be found on the Undergraduate Admissions website at admissions.carleton.ca.

Advanced Standing

Applications for admission to the second or subsequent years will be assessed on their merits. **Applicants must normally be *Eligible to Continue* in their year level, in addition to meeting the CGPA thresholds described in [Section 3.1.10](#) of the *Academic Regulations of the University*.**

Applicants will also be required to complete a portfolio which will assist in the evaluation of their suitability for the program. Detailed information about the portfolio requirements can be found at admissions.carleton.ca.

~~Advanced standing will be granted only for those courses that are determined to be appropriate.~~ Students will not receive credit for courses graded below C-.

Co-op Option

Direct Admission to the First Year of the Co-op Option

Applicants must:

1. meet the required overall admission cut-off average and prerequisite course average. These averages may be higher than the stated minimum requirements;
2. be registered as a full-time student in the B.A.S. program;
3. be eligible to work in Canada (for off-campus work placements).

Meeting the above requirements only establishes eligibility for admission to the program. The prevailing job market may limit enrolment in the co-op option.

Note: ~~Note:~~ continuation requirements for students previously admitted to the co-op option and admission requirements for the co-op option after beginning the program are described in the Co-operative Education Regulations section of this Calendar.

New Resources	No New Resources
Summary	With J. Sugar: implementing new Admissions Information paragraph which is common to all program admission pages; reworded Advanced Standing section to refer to chart showing minimum CGPA thresholds; improved formatting.
Rationale for change	New boilerplate language has been written and inserted into all the degree-specific admission pages. The advanced standing section has been rewritten to incorporate ACE terminology and to include a link to the academic regulations so that minimum CGPA thresholds are accessible.
Transition/Implementation	
Program reviewer comments	nataliephelan (10/21/21 4:49 pm): Rollback: To correct the academic unit.

Key: 1360

Date Submitted: 10/21/21 4:30 pm

Viewing: **TBD-1364 : R-ADM-Program-B.C.S.**

Last approved: 06/09/21 2:21 pm

Last edit: 10/21/21 4:30 pm

Last modified by: nataliephelan

Changes proposed by: nataliephelan

In Workflow

- 1. REGS ADM Review
- 2. PRE SCCASP
- 3. SCCASP
- 4. Senate
- 5. PRE CalEditor
- 6. CalEditor

Approval Path

- 1. 10/21/21 4:30 pm
Jen Sugar (jensugar):
Approved for REGS ADM Review
- 2. 10/27/21 3:18 pm
Natalie Phelan (nataliephelan):
Approved for PRE SCCASP
- 3. 11/02/21 5:15 pm
Erika Strathearn (erikastrathearn):
Approved for SCCASP

History

- 1. Jan 21, 2016 by Sandra Bauer (sandrabauer)
- 2. Jan 21, 2016 by Sandra Bauer (sandrabauer)
- 3. Mar 29, 2016 by Janice O'Farrell (janiceofarrell)
- 4. Feb 15, 2018 by Mike Labreque (mikelabreque)
- 5. Sep 6, 2019 by Sarah Cleary (sarahcleary)
- 6. Mar 17, 2021 by Jen Sugar (jensugar)
- 7. Jun 9, 2021 by Natalie Phelan (nataliephelan)

Calendar Pages Using this Program	Computer Science Computer Science
Effective Date	2022-23
Workflow	majormod minormod

Program Code	TBD-1364
Level	Undergraduate
Faculty	Not Applicable
Academic Unit	Regulations: Admissions
Degree	
Title	R-ADM-Program-B.C.S.

Program Requirements

Admissions Information

Admission requirements are based on the Ontario High School System. Prospective students can view ~~Note that meeting the admission above requirements through only establishes eligibility for admission to the Admissions website at admissions.carleton.ca.~~ **program.** The overall average required ~~Advanced Standing Applications~~ for admission is determined each ~~beyond first year will be assessed~~ on a program-by-program basis. ~~their individual merits.~~ Holding the minimum admission requirements only establishes eligibility for consideration; higher averages are required for admission to programs for which the demand for places by qualified applicants exceeds the number of places available. All programs have limited enrolment and admission is not guaranteed. Some programs may also require specific course prerequisites and prerequisite averages and/or supplementary admission portfolios. Consult admissions.carleton.ca for further details.

Note: Courses listed as *recommended* are not mandatory for admission. Students who do not follow the recommendations will not be disadvantaged in the admission process.

Degree

- **Bachelor of Computer Science (B.C.S.) (Honours)**
- ~~B.C.S.(Major)~~**B.C.S. Bachelor of Computer Science (B.C.S.) (Major) (Honours)**

Admission Requirements

First Year

The Ontario Secondary School Diploma (OSSD) or equivalent, including a minimum ~~of~~ **of** six 4U or M courses. The six 4U or M courses must include Advanced **Functions**, ~~Functions~~ and Calculus and Vectors.

Advanced Standing

Applications for admission beyond first year will be assessed on their merits. Students must typically present a minimum CGPA of 7.00 (B-) in order to be considered for admission. ~~Advanced Standing Applications for admission beyond first year will be assessed on their individual merits.~~ Advanced standing will be granted only for those subjects assessed as being appropriate for the program and the stream selected. Students will not receive credit for courses graded below C-.

Co-op Option

Direct Admission to the First Year of the Co-op Option

Applicants must:

1.

meet the required overall admission cut-off average and prerequisite course average. These averages may be higher than the stated minimum requirements;
2.

be registered as a full-time student in the Bachelor of Computer Science Honours program;
3.

be eligible to work in Canada (for off-campus work placements).

Meeting the above requirements only establishes eligibility for admission to the program. ~~Note that meeting the above requirements only establishes eligibility for admission to the program.~~ The prevailing job market may limit enrolment in the co-op option.

Note: ~~Note:~~ continuation requirements for students previously admitted to the co-op option and admission requirements for the co-op option after beginning the program are described in the Co-operative Education Regulations section of this Calendar.

New Resources	No New Resources
Summary	With J. Sugar: implementing new Admissions Information paragraph which is common to all program admission pages; improved formatting.
Rationale for change	New boilerplate language has been written and inserted into all the degree-specific admission pages. The advanced standing section has been rewritten to incorporate a minimum CGPA expectation for better clarity.
Transition/Implementation	
Program reviewer comments	

Key: 1364

Date Submitted: 10/21/21 4:30 pm

Viewing: **TBD-1372 : R-ADM-Program-B.Co.M.S.**

Last approved: 06/09/21 2:11 pm

Last edit: 10/21/21 4:30 pm

Last modified by: nataliephelan

Changes proposed by: nataliephelan

In Workflow

1. REGS ADM Review
2. PRE SCCASP
3. SCCASP
4. Senate
5. PRE CalEditor
6. CalEditor

Approval Path

1. 10/21/21 4:31 pm
Jen Sugar (jensugar):
Approved for REGS ADM Review
2. 10/27/21 3:18 pm
Natalie Phelan (nataliephelan):
Approved for PRE SCCASP
3. 11/02/21 5:15 pm
Erika Strathearn (erikastrathearn):
Approved for SCCASP

History

1. Jan 21, 2016 by Sandra Bauer (sandrabauer)
2. Mar 29, 2016 by Janice O'Farrell (janiceofarrell)
3. Feb 15, 2018 by Mike Labreque (mikelabreque)
4. Mar 26, 2021 by Sarah Cleary (sarahcleary)
5. Jun 9, 2021 by Natalie Phelan (nataliephelan)

Calendar Pages Using this Program [Communication and Media Studies](#)
[Communication and Media Studies](#)

Effective Date 2022-23

Workflow **majormod** ~~minormod~~

Program Code TBD-1372

Level Undergraduate

Faculty	Not Applicable
Academic Unit	Regulations: Admissions
Degree	
Title	R-ADM-Program-B.Co.M.S.

Program Requirements

Admissions Information

Admission requirements are based on the Ontario High School System. Prospective students can view the admission requirements through the Admissions website at admissions.carleton.ca. The overall average required for admission is determined each year on a program-by-program basis. Holding the minimum admission requirements only establishes eligibility ~~The cut-off average~~ for consideration; higher averages are required for admission to programs for which the demand for places by qualified applicants exceeds the number of places available. ~~admission will be set annually and will normally be above the minimum requirement.~~ All programs have limited enrolment and admission is not guaranteed. Some programs may also require specific course prerequisites and prerequisite averages and/or supplementary admission portfolios. Consult admissions.carleton.ca for further details.

Note: Courses listed as *recommended* are not mandatory for admission. Students who do not follow the recommendations will not be disadvantaged in the admission process.

Degrees

- Bachelor of Communication and Media Studies (**B.Co.M.S.**) (Honours)
- Bachelor of Communication and Media Studies (**B.Co.M.S.**)

Admission Requirements

First Year

B. Co.M.S. ~~(Honours)~~(Honours)

The Ontario Secondary School Diploma (OSSD) or equivalent including a minimum of six 4U or M courses. The six 4U or M courses must include a 4U course in English (or *anglais*). For applicants whose first language is not English, the requirement of English can also be met under the conditions outlined in the section English Language Requirements in the Admissions Requirements and Procedures section of this Calendar.

~~The cut-off average for admission will be set annually and will normally be above the minimum requirement. Applicants falling slightly below the cut-off average will be considered on an individual basis to determine whether there are special circumstances that would permit their admission. Students who feel that their high school grade average does not reflect their potential may apply to the Enriched Support Program (see the Enriched Support Program section of this Calendar).~~ **B. Co.M.S.**

Access to the B.Co.M.S. degree is limited to B.Co.M.S. (Honours) students who apply to transfer.

Advanced Standing

Applications for admission ~~beyond first year to the second or subsequent years~~ will be assessed on their merits. **Applicants must normally be *Eligible to Continue* in their year level, in addition to meeting the GPA thresholds described in [Section](#)**

3.1.10 of the Academic Regulations of the University. Advanced standing will be granted only for those subjects assessed as being appropriate for the program and the stream selected.

~~Advanced standing will be granted only for those courses that are determined to be appropriate.~~ Co-op Option

Direct Admission to the First Year of the Co-op Option

Applicants must:

1. meet the required overall admission cut-off average and prerequisite course average. These averages may be higher than the stated minimum requirements;
2. be registered as a full-time student in the Bachelor of Communication and Media Studies (Honours);
3. be eligible to work in Canada (for off-campus work placements).

Meeting the above requirements only establishes eligibility for admission to the program. The prevailing job market may limit enrolment in the co-op option. Students should also note that hiring priority is given to Canadian citizens for co-op positions in the Public Service Commission.

Note: ~~Note:~~ continuation requirements for students previously admitted to the co-op option and admission **requirements** ~~requirements~~ for the co-op option after beginning the program are described in the Co-operative Education Regulations section of this Calendar.

New Resources	No New Resources
Summary	With J. Sugar: implementing new Admissions Information paragraph which is common to all program admission pages; reworded Advanced Standing section to refer to chart showing minimum CGPA thresholds; improved formatting.
Rationale for change	New boilerplate language has been written and inserted into all the degree-specific admission pages. The advanced standing section has been rewritten to incorporate ACE terminology and to include a link to the academic regulations so that minimum CGPA thresholds are accessible.
Transition/Implementation	
Program reviewer comments	

Key: 1372

Date Submitted: 10/21/21 4:35 pm

Viewing: **TBD-1362 : R-ADM-Program-B.Cog.Sc.**

Last approved: 03/26/21 10:50 am

Last edit: 10/21/21 4:39 pm

Last modified by: nataliephelan

Changes proposed by: nataliephelan

In Workflow

1. REGS ADM Review
2. PRE SCCASP
3. SCCASP
4. Senate
5. PRE CalEditor
6. CalEditor

Approval Path

1. 10/22/21 9:37 am
Jen Sugar (jensugar):
Approved for REGS ADM Review
2. 10/27/21 3:19 pm
Natalie Phelan (nataliephelan):
Approved for PRE SCCASP
3. 11/02/21 5:15 pm
Erika Strathearn (erikastrathearn):
Approved for SCCASP

History

1. Jan 21, 2016 by Sandra Bauer (sandrabauer)
2. Mar 29, 2016 by Sandra Bauer (sandrabauer)
3. Oct 17, 2016 by Sandra Bauer (sandrabauer)
4. Feb 15, 2018 by Mike Labreque (mikelabreque)
5. Mar 26, 2021 by Sarah Cleary (sarahcleary)

Calendar Pages Using this Program [Cognitive Science](#)
[Cognitive Science](#)

Effective Date 2022-23

Workflow **majormod** minormod

Program Code TBD-1362

Level Undergraduate

Faculty	Faculty of Arts and Social Sciences
Academic Unit	Department of Cognitive Science Regulations: Admissions
Degree	
Title	R-ADM-Program-B.Cog.Sc.

Program Requirements

Admissions Information

Admission requirements are based on the Ontario High School System. Prospective students can view the admission requirements through the Admissions website at admissions.carleton.ca. The overall average required for admission is determined each year on a program-by-program basis. Holding the minimum ~~Advanced Standing~~ Applications for admission requirements only establishes eligibility for consideration; higher averages are required for admission to programs for which the demand for places by qualified applicants exceeds the number of places available. ~~the second or subsequent years will be assessed on their merits.~~ All programs have limited enrolment and admission is not guaranteed. Some programs may also require specific course prerequisites and prerequisite averages and/or supplementary admission portfolios. Consult admissions.carleton.ca for further details.

Note: Courses listed as *recommended* are not mandatory for admission. Students who do not follow the recommendations will not be disadvantaged in the admission process.

Degrees

- Bachelor of Cognitive Science (**B.Cog.Sci.**) (Honours)
- Bachelor of Cognitive Science (**B.Cog.Sci.**)

Admission Requirements

First Year

The Ontario Secondary School Diploma (OSSD) or equivalent including a minimum of six 4U or M courses. The six 4U or M courses must include a 4U course in English (or **anglais**). ~~anglais~~. For applicants whose first language is not English, the requirement of English can also be met under the conditions outlined in the section "English Language Requirements" in the *Admissions Requirements and Procedures* section of this Calendar.

The cut-off average for admission will be set annually and will normally be above the minimum requirement.

~~Advanced Standing Applications for admission to the second or subsequent years will be assessed on their merits.~~ Advanced **Standing**

~~Applications standing will be granted only~~ for admission beyond first year will be assessed on their merits. ~~those courses that are determined to be appropriate.~~ Applicants must normally be *Eligible to Continue* in their year level, in addition to meeting the GPA thresholds described in [Section 3.1.10](#) of the *Academic Regulations of the University*. Advanced standing will be granted only for those subjects that are assessed as being appropriate for the program and stream selected.

Co-op Option

Direct Admission to the First Year of the Co-op Option

Applicants must:

1.

meet the required overall admission cut-off average and prerequisite course average. These averages may be higher than the stated minimum requirements;

2.

be registered as a full-time student in the Bachelor of Cognitive **Science Honours; Science;**

3.

be eligible to work in Canada (for off-campus work placements).
- Meeting the above requirements only establishes eligibility for admission to the program. The prevailing job market may limit enrolment in the co-op option. Students should also note that hiring priority is given to Canadian citizens for co-op positions in the Public Service Commission.

Note: ~~Note:~~ continuation requirements for students previously admitted to the co-op option and admission **requirements** ~~requirements~~ for the co-op option after beginning the program are described in the Co-operative Education Regulations section of this Calendar.

New Resources	No New Resources
Summary	With J. Sugar: implementing new Admissions Information paragraph which is common to all program admission pages; reworded Advanced Standing section to refer to chart showing minimum CGPA thresholds; improved formatting.
Rationale for change	New boilerplate language has been written and inserted into all the degree-specific admission pages. The advanced standing section has been rewritten to incorporate ACE terminology and to include a link to the academic regulations so that minimum CGPA thresholds are accessible.
Transition/Implementation	
Program reviewer comments	

Key: 1362

Date Submitted: 10/21/21 4:36 pm

Viewing: **TBD-1363 : R-ADM-Program-B.Com.**

Last approved: 05/03/21 1:48 pm

Last edit: 11/03/21 9:05 am

Last modified by: nataliephelan

Changes proposed by: nataliephelan

In Workflow

- 1. REGS ADM Review
- 2. PRE SCCASP
- 3. SCCASP
- 4. Senate
- 5. PRE CalEditor
- 6. CalEditor

Approval Path

- 1. 10/22/21 9:37 am
Jen Sugar (jensugar):
Approved for REGS ADM Review
- 2. 10/27/21 3:19 pm
Natalie Phelan (nataliephelan):
Approved for PRE SCCASP
- 3. 11/02/21 5:15 pm
Erika Strathearn (erikastrathearn):
Approved for SCCASP
- 4. 11/03/21 9:00 am
Natalie Phelan (nataliephelan): Rollback to PRE SCCASP for Senate

History

- 1. Jan 21, 2016 by Sandra Bauer (sandrabauer)
- 2. Apr 4, 2016 by Janice O'Farrell (janiceofarrell)
- 3. Oct 17, 2016 by Sandra Bauer (sandrabauer)
- 4. Mar 30, 2017 by Sandra Bauer (sandrabauer)
- 5. Feb 12, 2020 by Jen Sugar (jensugar)
- 6. May 3, 2021 by Sarah Cleary (sarahcleary)

Calendar Pages Using this Program

[Business Commerce](#)

Effective Date

2022-23

Workflow	majormod
Program Code	TBD-1363
Level	Undergraduate
Faculty	Sprott School of Business
Academic Unit	School of Business Regulations: Admissions
Degree	
Title	R-ADM-Program-B.Com.

Program Requirements

Admissions Information

Admission requirements are based on the Ontario High School System. Prospective students can view the admission requirements through the Admissions website at admissions.carleton.ca. The overall average required for admission is determined each year on a program-by-program basis. Holding the minimum admission requirements only establishes eligibility for consideration; higher averages are required for admission to programs for which the demand for places by qualified applicants exceeds the number of places available. All programs have limited enrolment and admission is not guaranteed. Some programs may also require specific course prerequisites and prerequisite averages and/or supplementary admission portfolios. Consult admissions.carleton.ca for further details.

Note: Courses listed as *recommended* are not mandatory for admission. Students who do not follow the recommendations will not be disadvantaged in the admission process.

Degree

- Bachelor of Commerce (B.Com.) (Honours)
- Bachelor of Commerce (B.Com.)

Admission Requirements

First Year

Bachelor of Commerce (B.Com.) (Honours)

The Ontario Secondary School Diploma (OSSD) or equivalent including a minimum of six 4U or M courses. The six 4U or M courses must include **English (or anglais)**, ~~English~~, Advanced Functions, and Calculus and Vectors. Applicants who do not present with Calculus and Vectors must successfully complete **MATH 0009** ~~MATH-0009~~ at Carleton in the Fall semester of first year in order to be eligible to continue.

For applicants whose first language is not English, the requirement of 4U English can also be met under the conditions outlined in the "**English** ~~English~~ Language **Requirements**" ~~Requirements~~ of the Admissions Requirements and Procedures section of this Calendar.

Bachelor of Commerce (B.Com.)

No direct **entry**; ~~entry~~; access is restricted.

Advanced Standing

Bachelor of Commerce (B.Com.) (Honours)

Applications for admission to the second or subsequent years will be assessed on their merits. Students must present a major CGPA of 6.50 (C+/B-) or higher, and an overall CGPA of 8.00 (B) or higher. Advanced standing will be granted only for those courses that are determined to be **appropriate**.

~~appropriate:~~

~~Students will not receive credit for courses graded below C-~~ Current Carleton students may also be assessed for admission to second and subsequent years if they present BUSI 1001 and BUSI 1002 with an average of 8.0 or higher (with no individual grade below C+) and a **Major major** CGPA of 6.50 (C+/B-) or higher.

Applications by B.I.B. (Honours) students for admission to the second or subsequent years of B.Com. (Honours) will be assessed on their merits. Students must present a **Major major** CGPA and an **Overall overall** CGPA consistent with the Academic Continuation Performance Evaluation requirements for B.Com. (Honours) students. Advanced standing will be granted for those courses determined to be appropriate.

Bachelor of Commerce (B.Com.)

No direct entry. Access is restricted to students in the Bachelor of Commerce (Honours) and Bachelor of International Business (Honours). (See Regulations for Business.)

Co-op Option

Direct Admission to the First Year of the Co-op Option

Applicants must:

1. meet the required overall admission cut-off average and prerequisite course average. These averages may be higher than the stated minimum requirements;
2. be registered as a full-time student in the Bachelor of Commerce (Honours) program;
3. be eligible to work in Canada (for off-campus work placements).

Meeting the above requirements only establishes eligibility for admission to the program. The prevailing job market may limit enrolment in the co-op option.

Note: ~~Note:~~ continuation requirements for students previously admitted to the co-op option and admission requirements for the co-op option after beginning the program are described in the Co-operative Education Regulations section of this Calendar.

New Resources	No New Resources
Summary	With J. Sugar: implementing new Admissions Information paragraph which is common to all program admission pages; improved formatting.
Rationale for change	New boilerplate language has been written and inserted into all the degree-specific admission pages. Language and formatting clean-up throughout.
Transition/Implementation	
Program reviewer comments	nataliephelan (11/03/21 9:00 am): Rollback: Advanced credit rewording nataliephelan (11/03/21 9:05 am): Per J. Sugar and H. Nemiroff: removed reference to minimum C grade for advanced standing courses.

Key: 1363

Date Submitted: 10/21/21 4:47 pm

Viewing: **TBD-1457 : R-ADM-Program-B.Econ.**

Last approved: 04/13/17 12:44 pm

Last edit: 10/22/21 3:28 pm

Last modified by: jensugar

Changes proposed by: nataliephelan

In Workflow

- 1. REGS ADM Review
- 2. PRE SCCASP
- 3. SCCASP
- 4. Senate
- 5. PRE CalEditor
- 6. CalEditor

Approval Path

- 1. 10/21/21 4:47 pm
Natalie Phelan
(nataliephelan): Rollback to Initiator
- 2. 10/22/21 9:37 am
Jen Sugar (jensugar):
Approved for REGS ADM Review
- 3. 10/22/21 2:42 pm
Natalie Phelan
(nataliephelan): Rollback to REGS ADM Review for PRE SCCASP
- 4. 10/22/21 3:28 pm
Jen Sugar (jensugar):
Approved for REGS ADM Review
- 5. 10/27/21 3:19 pm
Natalie Phelan
(nataliephelan):
Approved for PRE SCCASP
- 6. 11/02/21 5:15 pm
Erika Strathearn
(erikastrathearn):
Approved for SCCASP

History

- 1. Mar 17, 2017 by Keir Armstrong
(keirarmstrong)
- 2. Apr 13, 2017 by Sandra Bauer (sandrabauer)

Effective Date	2022-23
Workflow	majormod minormod
Program Code	TBD-1457
Level	Undergraduate
Faculty	Faculty of Public Affairs
Academic Unit	Regulations: Admissions Department of Economics Regulations:RO
Degree	
Title	R-ADM-Program-B.Econ.

Program Requirements

Admissions Information

Admission requirements are based on the Ontario High School System. Prospective students can view the admission requirements through the Admissions website at admissions.carleton.ca. The overall average required for admission is determined each year on a program-by-program basis. Holding the minimum ~~Advanced Standing~~Applications for admission requirements only establishes eligibility for consideration; higher averages are required for admission to programs for which the demand for places by qualified applicants exceeds the number of places available. ~~the second or subsequent years will be assessed on their merits.~~ All programs have limited enrolment and admission is not guaranteed. Some programs may also require specific course prerequisites and prerequisite averages and/or supplementary admission portfolios. Consult admissions.carleton.ca for further details.

Note: Courses listed as *recommended* are not mandatory for admission. Students who do not follow the recommendations will not be disadvantaged in the admission process.

Degree

- **Bachelor of Economics (B.Econ.) (Honours)**
- Bachelor of Economics (B.Econ.) ~~(Honours)~~

Admission Requirements

First Year

The Ontario Secondary School Diploma (OSSD) or equivalent including a minimum of six 4U or M courses. ~~The six 4U or M courses must include a 4U course in English (or anglais) as well as 4U Advanced Functions or MATH0005. In addition, 4U Calculus and Vectors or MATH 0107 is strongly recommended. Equivalent courses may be substituted between the old and new Ontario mathematics curriculum.~~ **The six 4U or M courses must include a 4U course in** For applicants whose first language is not English, the requirement of English (or *anglais*) as well as 4U Advanced Functions or MATH 0005. For applicants whose first language is not English, the requirement of English can also be met under the conditions outlined in the section “English Language Requirements” in the **English Language Admissions** Requirements ~~section of and Procedures~~section of this Calendar.

~~Advanced Standing Applications for admission to the second or subsequent years will be assessed on their merits.~~ Advanced Standing

~~Applications standing will be granted only~~ for admission beyond first year will be assessed on their merits. ~~those courses that are determined to be appropriate.~~ Applicants must normally be *Eligible to Continue* in their year level, in addition to meeting the GPA thresholds described in Section 3.1.10 of the *Academic Regulations of the University*. Advanced standing will be granted only for those subjects assessed as being appropriate for the program and stream selected.

Co-op Option

Direct Admission to the First Year of the Co-op Option

Applicants must:

1. ~~Applicants must:~~ meet the required overall admission cut-off average and prerequisite course average. These averages may be higher than the stated minimum requirements;
2. be registered as a full-time student in a Bachelor of Economics Honours program;
3. be eligible to work in Canada (for off-campus work placements).

Meeting the above requirements only establishes eligibility for admission to the program. The prevailing job market may limit enrolment in the co-op option. Students should also note that hiring priority is given to Canadian citizens for co-op positions in the Public Service Commission.

Note: ~~Note:~~ continuation requirements for students previously admitted to the co-op option and admission requirements for the co-op option after beginning the program are described in the *Co-operative Education Regulations* section of this Calendar.

New Resources	No New Resources
Summary	With J. Sugar: implementing new Admissions Information paragraph which is common to all program admission pages; reworded Advanced Standing section to refer to chart showing minimum CGPA thresholds; improved formatting.
Rationale for change	New boilerplate language has been written and inserted into all the degree-specific admission pages. The advanced standing section has been rewritten to incorporate ACE terminology and to include a link to the academic regulations so that minimum CGPA thresholds are accessible.

Transition/Implementation

Program reviewer comments	nataliephelan (10/21/21 4:47 pm): Rollback: Correct academic unit. nataliephelan (10/22/21 2:42 pm): Rollback: Rollback to incorporate dept's edit.
---------------------------	--

Key: 1457

Date Submitted: 10/21/21 4:41 pm

Viewing: **TBD-1365 : R-ADM-Program-B.Eng.**

Last approved: 06/09/21 2:46 pm

Last edit: 10/21/21 4:41 pm

Last modified by: nataliephelan

Changes proposed by: nataliephelan

In Workflow

1. REGS ADM Review
2. PRE SCCASP
3. SCCASP
4. Senate
5. PRE CalEditor
6. CalEditor

Approval Path

1. 10/22/21 9:37 am
Jen Sugar (jensugar):
Approved for REGS ADM Review
2. 10/27/21 3:19 pm
Natalie Phelan (nataliephelan):
Approved for PRE SCCASP
3. 11/02/21 5:15 pm
Erika Strathearn (erikastrathearn):
Approved for SCCASP

History

1. Jan 21, 2016 by Sandra Bauer (sandrabauer)
2. Mar 29, 2016 by Janice O'Farrell (janiceofarrell)
3. Jun 9, 2021 by Natalie Phelan (nataliephelan)

Calendar Pages Using this Program

Engineering
Engineering

Effective Date	2022-23
Workflow	majormod minormod
Program Code	TBD-1365
Level	Undergraduate
Faculty	Not Applicable
Academic Unit	Regulations: Admissions

Degree

Title R-ADM-Program-B.Eng.

Program Requirements

Admissions Information

Admission requirements are based on the Ontario High School System. Prospective students can view ~~Note that meeting the admission above entrance requirements through only establishes eligibility for admission to the Admissions website at admissions.carleton.ca.~~ **program.** The overall average required for admission is determined each year on a program-by-program basis. ~~cut-off average and/or the prerequisite course average may be considerably higher than the stated minimum requirements for some Engineering programs.~~ Holding the minimum ~~Advanced Standing~~ Applications for admission requirements only establishes eligibility for consideration; higher averages are required for admission ~~with advanced standing~~ to programs for which the program leading to the demand for places by qualified applicants exceeds the number ~~Bachelor~~ of places available. ~~Engineering degree will be evaluated on an individual basis.~~ All programs have limited enrolment and admission is not guaranteed. Some programs may also require specific course prerequisites and prerequisite averages and/or supplementary admission portfolios. Consult admissions.carleton.ca for further details.

Note: Courses listed as *recommended* are not mandatory for admission. Students who do not follow the recommendations will not be disadvantaged in the admission process.

Degree

- **Bachelor of Engineering (B. ~~B.Eng.~~Eng.)**

Admission Requirements

First Year

The Ontario Secondary School Diploma (OSSD) or equivalent including a minimum of six 4U or M courses. The six 4U or M courses must include four prerequisite **4U courses:** ~~courses (4U courses in Advanced Functions, Chemistry, Physics, and one of Calculus and Vectors (recommended) or Biology or Earth and Space Science).~~ **Advanced Functions, Chemistry, Physics, and one of Calculus and Vectors (recommended), or Biology, or Earth and Space Science.** Although it is not an admission requirement, at least one 4U course in either English or **French français** is recommended.

Advanced Standing

Applications for admission beyond first year will be assessed on their merits. ~~The overall admission cut-off average and/or the prerequisite course average may be considerably higher than the stated minimum requirements for some Engineering programs.~~ ~~Advanced Standing Applications for admission with advanced standing to the program leading to the Bachelor of Engineering degree will be evaluated on an individual basis.~~ Successful applicants will have individual academic subjects, completed with grades of C- or higher, evaluated for academic standing, provided the academic work has been completed at another university or degree-granting **college, college** or in another degree program at Carleton **University.**

University:

~~Students must take a minimum of 1.0 credit of Complementary Studies Electives at Carleton University.~~ **Co-op Option**

Direct Admission to the First Year of the Co-op Option ~~Co-op Option~~

Applicants must:

1. meet the required overall admission cut-off average and prerequisite course average. These averages may be higher than the stated minimum requirements;
2. be registered as a full-time student in the Engineering degree;
3. be eligible for work in Canada (for off-campus work placements).

Meeting the above entrance requirements only establishes eligibility for admission to the program. ~~Note that meeting the above entrance requirements only establishes eligibility for admission to the program.~~Enrolment in the co-op option may be limited at the discretion of the department.

Note: ~~Note:~~continuation requirements for students previously admitted to the co-op option and admission requirements for the co-op option after beginning the program are described in the Co-operative Education Regulations section of this Calendar.

New Resources	No New Resources
Summary	With J. Sugar: implementing new Admissions Information paragraph which is common to all program admission pages; improved formatting.
Rationale for change	New boilerplate language has been written and inserted into all the degree-specific admission pages. Language and formatting clean-up throughout.
Transition/Implementation	
Program reviewer comments	

Key: 1365

Date Submitted: 10/21/21 4:45 pm

Viewing: **TBD-1366 : R-ADM-Program-B.G.In.S.**

Last approved: 03/26/21 10:51 am

Last edit: 10/21/21 4:45 pm

Last modified by: nataliephelan

Changes proposed by: nataliephelan

In Workflow

1. REGS ADM Review
2. PRE SCCASP
3. SCCASP
4. Senate
5. PRE CalEditor
6. CalEditor

Approval Path

1. 10/22/21 9:37 am
Jen Sugar (jensugar):
Approved for REGS ADM Review
2. 10/27/21 3:20 pm
Natalie Phelan (nataliephelan):
Approved for PRE SCCASP
3. 11/02/21 5:15 pm
Erika Strathearn (erikastrathearn):
Approved for SCCASP

History

1. Jan 21, 2016 by Sandra Bauer (sandrabauer)
2. Jan 30, 2018 by Chris Brown (chrisbrown)
3. Mar 26, 2021 by Sarah Cleary (sarahcleary)

Calendar Pages Using this Program

[Global and International Studies History](#)
[Bachelor of Global and International Studies](#)

Effective Date 2022-23

Workflow **majormod** minormod

Program Code TBD-1366

Level Undergraduate

Faculty Not Applicable

Academic Unit	Regulations: Admissions
Degree	
Title	R-ADM-Program-B.G.In.S.

Program Requirements

Admissions Information

Admission requirements are based on the Ontario High School System. Prospective students can view the admission requirements through the Admissions website at admissions.carleton.ca. The overall average required for admission is determined each year on a program-by-program basis. Holding the minimum admission requirements only establishes eligibility for consideration; higher averages are required for admission to programs for which the demand for places by qualified applicants exceeds the number of places available. All programs have limited enrolment and admission is not guaranteed. Some programs may also require specific course prerequisites and prerequisite averages and/or supplementary admission portfolios. Consult admissions.carleton.ca for further details.

Note: Courses listed as *recommended* are not mandatory for admission. Students who do not follow the recommendations will not be disadvantaged in the admission process.

Degrees

- Bachelor of Global and International Studies (**B.G.In.S.**) (Honours)
- Bachelor of Global and International Studies (**B.G.In.S.**)

Admission Requirements -

First Year

B.G.In.S. (Honours)

The Ontario Secondary School Diploma (OSSD) or equivalent including a minimum of six 4U or M courses. The six 4U or M courses must include a 4U course in English (or *anglais*) and a FIF4U course for students applying to the Specialization in French and Francophone Studies. For applicants whose first language is not English, the requirement of English can also be met under the conditions outlined in the section English Language Requirements in the Admissions Requirements and Procedures section of this Calendar.

B.G.In.S.

No direct entry; access is restricted.

~~The cut-off average for admission will be set annually and will normally be above the minimum requirement. Applicants falling slightly below the cut-off average will be considered on an individual basis to determine whether there are special circumstances that would permit their admission. Students who feel that their high school grade average does not reflect their potential may apply to the Enriched Support Program (see the Enriched Support Program section of this Calendar).~~ **B.G.In.S.** Access to the **B.G.In.S.** degree is limited to **B.G.In.S. (Honours)** students ~~who apply to transfer.~~ **Advanced Standing -**

B.G.In.S. (Honours) ~~(Honours)~~ Program

Applications for admission **beyond first year** ~~to the second or subsequent years~~ will be assessed on their merits. **Applicants must normally be *Eligible to Continue* in their year level, in addition to meeting the GPA thresholds described in Section 3.1.10 of the *Academic Regulations of the University*. Advanced** ~~Advanced~~ standing will be granted only for those **subjects assessed as being appropriate for the program and stream selected.** ~~courses that are determined to be appropriate.~~ **Students who have completed more than 7.0 credits of post-secondary study are not typically considered for transfer.**

B.G.In.S.

No direct entry. ~~G.In.S.~~ **Access is restricted to students in the B.G.In.S. (Honours) program** ~~students~~ **who apply to transfer.**

New Resources	No New Resources
Summary	With J. Sugar: implementing new Admissions Information paragraph which is common to all program admission pages; reworded Advanced Standing section to refer to chart showing minimum CGPA thresholds; improved formatting.
Rationale for change	New boilerplate language has been written and inserted into all the degree-specific admission pages. The advanced standing section has been rewritten to incorporate ACE terminology and to include a link to the academic regulations so that minimum CGPA thresholds are accessible.
Transition/Implementation	
Program reviewer comments	

Key: 1366

Date Submitted: 10/21/21 4:41 pm

Viewing: **TBD-1367 : R-ADM-Program-B.H.Sc.**

Last approved: 06/09/21 3:20 pm

Last edit: 10/21/21 4:41 pm

Last modified by: nataliephelan

Changes proposed by: nataliephelan

In Workflow

1. REGS ADM Review
2. PRE SCCASP
3. SCCASP
4. Senate
5. PRE CalEditor
6. CalEditor

Approval Path

1. 10/22/21 9:37 am
Jen Sugar (jensugar):
Approved for REGS ADM Review
2. 10/27/21 3:20 pm
Natalie Phelan (nataliephelan):
Approved for PRE SCCASP
3. 11/02/21 5:16 pm
Erika Strathearn (erikastrathearn):
Approved for SCCASP

History

1. Jan 21, 2016 by Sandra Bauer (sandrabauer)
2. Apr 10, 2017 by Sandra Bauer (sandrabauer)
3. Apr 10, 2017 by Sandra Bauer (sandrabauer)
4. Mar 9, 2020 by Jen Sugar (jensugar)
5. Mar 26, 2021 by Sarah Cleary (sarahcleary)
6. Jun 9, 2021 by Natalie Phelan (nataliephelan)

Calendar Pages Using this Program [Health Sciences](#)
[Health Sciences](#)

Effective Date 2022-23

Workflow **majormod** ~~minormod~~

Program Code TBD-1367

Level	Undergraduate
Faculty	Faculty of Science
Academic Unit	Regulations: Admissions Department of Health Sciences
Degree	
Title	R-ADM-Program-B.H.Sc.

Program Requirements

Admissions Information

Admission requirements are based on the Ontario High School System. Prospective students can view the admission requirements through the Admissions website at admissions.carleton.ca. The overall average required for admission is determined each year on a program-by-program basis. Holding the minimum admission requirements only establishes eligibility for consideration; higher averages are required for admission to programs for which the demand for places by qualified applicants exceeds the number of places available. All programs have limited enrolment and admission is not guaranteed. Some programs may also require specific course prerequisites and prerequisite averages and/or supplementary admission portfolios. Consult admissions.carleton.ca for further details.

Note: Courses listed as *recommended* are not mandatory for admission. Students who do not follow the recommendations will not be disadvantaged in the admission process.

Degrees

- Bachelor of Health Sciences **(B.H.Sc.)** (Honours)
- Bachelor of Health Sciences **(B.H.Sc.)**

Admission Requirements

First Year

B.H.Sc. ~~(Honours)~~(Honours)

The Ontario Secondary School Diploma (OSSD) or equivalent including a minimum of six 4U or M courses. The six 4U or M courses must include Advanced Functions and two of Biology, Chemistry, Earth and Space **Sciences**, ~~Sciences~~ or Physics. **Calculus** (~~Calculus~~ and Vectors is strongly **recommended**. ~~recommended~~). A 4U course in English is recommended.

B.H.Sc.

No direct entry; access is restricted.

Advanced Standing

B.H.Sc. ~~Access to the B.H.Sc. degree is limited to B.H.Sc.(Honours) students who apply to transfer.(Honours)~~ Advanced Standing

The program maintains a number of places for students who wish to transfer from Carleton or elsewhere. Normally, offers are made to students with an overall CGPA of 9.00 (B+) or higher.

B.H.Sc.
No direct entry. Access is restricted to students in the B.H.Sc. (Honours) program ~~students~~ who apply to transfer.

New Resources	No New Resources
Summary	With J. Sugar: implementing new Admissions Information paragraph which is common to all program admission pages; improved formatting.
Rationale for change	New boilerplate language has been written and inserted into all the degree-specific admission pages. Language and formatting clean-up throughout.
Transition/Implementation	
Program reviewer comments	

Key: 1367

Date Submitted: 10/21/21 4:41 pm

Viewing: **TBD-1368 : R-ADM-Program-B.Hum.**

Last approved: 01/21/16 12:39 pm

Last edit: 10/21/21 4:41 pm

Last modified by: nataliephelan

Changes proposed by: nataliephelan**In Workflow**

1. REGS ADM Review
2. PRE SCCASP
3. SCCASP
4. Senate
5. PRE CalEditor
6. CalEditor

Approval Path

1. 10/22/21 9:37 am
Jen Sugar (jensugar):
Approved for REGS ADM Review
2. 10/27/21 3:21 pm
Natalie Phelan (nataliephelan):
Approved for PRE SCCASP
3. 11/02/21 5:16 pm
Erika Strathearn (erikastrathearn):
Approved for SCCASP

History

1. Jan 21, 2016 by Sandra Bauer (sandrabauer)

Calendar Pages Using this Program [Humanities](#)
[Humanities](#)

Effective Date	2022-23
Workflow	majormod
Program Code	TBD-1368
Level	Undergraduate
Faculty	Not Applicable
Academic Unit	Regulations: Admissions
Degree	
Title	R-ADM-Program-B.Hum.

Program Requirements

Admissions Information

Admission requirements are based on the Ontario High School System. Prospective students can view the admission requirements through the Admissions website at admissions.carleton.ca. The overall average required for admission is determined each year on a program-by-program basis. Holding the minimum admission requirements only establishes eligibility for consideration; higher averages are required for admission to programs for which the demand for places by qualified applicants exceeds the number of places available. All programs have limited enrolment and admission is not guaranteed. Some programs may also require specific course prerequisites and prerequisite averages and/or supplementary admission portfolios. Consult admissions.carleton.ca for further details.

~~Degrees B. Hum. (Honours) B. Hum. and Biology (Honours) Admission Requirements First Year The Ontario Secondary School Diploma (OSSD) or equivalent including a minimum of six 4U or M courses. The Bachelor of Humanities and Biology option must include 4U Chemistry or 4U Biology.~~ **Note:** Courses listed as *recommended* are not mandatory for admission. Students who do not follow the recommendations will not be disadvantaged in the admission process.

Degrees

- B. Hum. (Honours)
- B. Hum. and Biology (Honours)

Admission Requirements

First Year

The Ontario Secondary School Diploma (OSSD) or equivalent including a minimum of six 4U or M courses. The Bachelor of Humanities and Biology option must include 4U Chemistry or 4U Biology.

Note: ~~applicants The overall admission cut-off average and/or prerequisite average may be considerably higher than the stated minimum requirements for admission. Applicants~~ with lower averages may be asked to submit a portfolio in support of their application. For detailed information about the portfolio and whether you are required to submit one, please consult admissions.carleton.ca. ~~consult with the Bachelor of Humanities website.~~

Advanced Standing

The College ~~also~~ maintains a number of places in second and third year for students who wish to transfer from Carleton or elsewhere. Applications will be assessed on their merits but normally an overall CGPA of 8.00 ~~8.0~~ (B) or higher is required. ~~The portfolio should be submitted to the College of the Humanities, Carleton University. Advanced Standing Applications for admission with advanced standing to the program leading to the Bachelor of Humanities will be evaluated individually.~~ On admission, students will not receive credit for courses graded below C-.

Transferring from the B.J.Hum. to the B.J. or B.Hum.

A student who wishes to transfer from the B.J.Hum. to the B.J. or the B.Hum. may apply through Admissions and will be accepted if, upon entry to the new program, they would be *Eligible to Continue* in the new degree program.

~~The College also maintains a number of places in second and third year for students who wish to transfer from Carleton or elsewhere. Applications will be assessed on their merits but normally an overall CGPA of 8.0 (B) or higher is required. On admission, students will not receive credit for courses graded below C-.~~

11/17/21, 8:31 PM		Program Management	
New Resources		No New Resources	
Summary		With J. Sugar: implementing new Admissions Information paragraph which is common to all program admission pages; improved formatting.	
Rationale for change		New boilerplate language has been written and inserted into all the degree-specific admission pages. Language and formatting clean-up throughout.	
Transition/Implementation			
Program reviewer comments			

Key: 1368

Date Submitted: 10/21/21 4:42 pm

Viewing: **TBD-1370 : R-ADM-Program-B.I.B.**

Last approved: 02/12/20 1:27 pm

Last edit: 11/03/21 9:05 am

Last modified by: nataliephelan

Changes proposed by: nataliephelan

In Workflow

1. **REGS ADM Review**
2. **PRE SCCASP**
3. SCCASP
4. Senate
5. PRE CalEditor
6. CalEditor

Approval Path

1. 10/22/21 9:38 am
Jen Sugar (jensugar):
Approved for REGS ADM Review
2. 10/27/21 3:22 pm
Natalie Phelan (nataliephelan):
Approved for PRE SCCASP
3. 11/02/21 5:16 pm
Erika Strathearn (erikastrathearn):
Approved for SCCASP
4. 11/03/21 8:59 am
Natalie Phelan (nataliephelan): Rollback to PRE SCCASP for Senate

History

1. Jan 21, 2016 by Sandra Bauer (sandrabauer)
2. Apr 4, 2016 by Janice O'Farrell (janiceofarrell)
3. Feb 12, 2020 by Jen Sugar (jensugar)

Calendar Pages Using this Program [Business](#)
[International Business](#)

Effective Date	2022-23
Workflow	majormod
Program Code	TBD-1370
Level	Undergraduate

Faculty	Not Applicable
Academic Unit	Regulations: Admissions
Degree	
Title	R-ADM-Program-B.I.B.

Program Requirements

Admissions Information

Admission requirements are based on the Ontario High School System. Prospective students can view the admission requirements through the Admissions website at admissions.carleton.ca. The overall average required for admission is determined each year on a program-by-program basis. Holding the minimum admission requirements only establishes eligibility for consideration; higher averages are required for admission to programs for which the demand for places by qualified applicants exceeds the number of places available. All programs have limited enrolment and admission is not guaranteed. Some programs may also require specific course prerequisites and prerequisite averages and/or supplementary admission portfolios. Consult admissions.carleton.ca for further details.

Note: Courses listed as *recommended* are not mandatory for admission. Students who do not follow the recommendations will not be disadvantaged in the admission process.

Degree

- Bachelor of International Business (B.I.B.) (Honours)

Admission Requirements

First Year

The Ontario Secondary School Diploma (OSSD) or equivalent including a minimum of six 4U or M courses. The six 4U or M courses must include **English (or anglais), English, Advanced Functions, and Calculus and Vectors. Applicants who do not present with Calculus and Vectors must successfully complete MATH 0009 MATH-0009 at Carleton in the Fall semester of first year in order to be eligible to continue.**

For applicants whose first language is not English, the requirement of 4U English can also be met under the conditions outlined in **the section** "English Language Requirements" in **the the Admissions Requirements and Procedures section section** of this Calendar.

Advanced Standing

Applications for admission to second and subsequent years will be assessed on their merits, subject to available spaces. Advanced standing will be granted only for those courses that are determined to be appropriate. Students must present an Overall CGPA of **8.00 8-0** (equivalent to B average) or **better.**

better.

~~Students will not receive credit for courses with grades below C-~~ Applications by B.Com. **(Honours)** students for admission to the second or subsequent years of B.I.B. will be assessed on their merits. Students must present a major CGPA and an overall

11/17/21, 8:31 PM

Program Management

CGPA consistent with the Academic **Continuation Performance** Evaluation requirements for B.I.B. students. Advanced standing will be granted **only** for those courses determined to be appropriate.

The design of the B.I.B. program is premised on a full year of study abroad (at third year) after the preparations leading to it are successfully completed at Carleton. Students who are admitted with advanced standing may need to delay **their study the third-year** abroad **requirement requirements** until **first- first** and **second-year second-year** curricula are **completed, completed** and consequently delay graduation.

Some transferred credits (normally electives) may have to be forfeited in order to meet the **third-year Third-year** Study Abroad Requirement of **a** minimum 4.0 credits completed during year abroad.

New Resources	No New Resources
Summary	With J. Sugar: implementing new Admissions Information paragraph which is common to all program admission pages; improved formatting.
Rationale for change	New boilerplate language has been written and inserted into all the degree-specific admission pages. Language and formatting clean-up throughout.
Transition/Implementation	
Program reviewer comments	nataliephelan (11/03/21 8:59 am) : Rollback: Advanced credit rewording nataliephelan (11/03/21 9:05 am) : Per J. Sugar and H. Nemiroff: removed reference to minimum C grade for advanced standing courses.

Key: 1370

Date Submitted: 10/21/21 4:42 pm

Viewing: **TBD-1369 : R-ADM-Program-B.I.D.**

Last approved: 01/21/16 12:57 pm

Last edit: 10/21/21 4:42 pm

Last modified by: nataliephelan

Changes proposed by: nataliephelan**In Workflow**

1. REGS ADM Review
2. PRE SCCASP
3. SCCASP
4. Senate
5. PRE CalEditor
6. CalEditor

Approval Path

1. 10/22/21 9:38 am
Jen Sugar (jensugar):
Approved for REGS ADM Review
2. 10/27/21 3:22 pm
Natalie Phelan (nataliephelan):
Approved for PRE SCCASP
3. 11/02/21 5:16 pm
Erika Strathearn (erikastrathearn):
Approved for SCCASP

History

1. Jan 21, 2016 by Sandra Bauer (sandrabauer)

Calendar Pages Using this Program [Industrial Design](#)
[Industrial Design](#)

Effective Date	2022-23
Workflow	majormod
Program Code	TBD-1369
Level	Undergraduate
Faculty	Not Applicable
Academic Unit	Regulations: Admissions
Degree	
Title	R-ADM-Program-B.I.D.

Program Requirements

Admissions Information

Admission requirements are based on the Ontario High School System. Prospective students can view the admission requirements through the Admissions website at admissions.carleton.ca. The overall average required for admission is determined each year on a program-by-program basis. Holding the minimum admission requirements only establishes eligibility for consideration; higher averages are required for admission to programs for which the demand for places by qualified applicants exceeds the number of places available. All programs have limited enrolment and admission is not guaranteed. Some programs may also require specific course prerequisites and prerequisite averages and/or supplementary admission portfolios. Consult admissions.carleton.ca for further details.

~~Degree Bachelor of Industrial Design (B.I.D.) Admission Requirements First Year The Ontario Secondary School Diploma (OSSD) or equivalent including a minimum of six 4U or M courses. The six 4U or M courses must include Advanced Functions and Physics. Calculus and Vectors, Design Technology and Visual Arts are strongly recommended. Equivalent courses may be substituted between the old and new Ontario mathematics curriculum.~~ **Note:** Courses listed as *recommended* are not mandatory for admission. Students who do not follow the recommendations will not be disadvantaged in the admission process.

Degree

- Bachelor of Industrial Design (B.I.D.)

Admission Requirements

First Year

The Ontario Secondary School Diploma (OSSD) or equivalent including a minimum of six 4U or M courses. The six 4U or M courses must include Advanced Functions and Physics. Calculus and Vectors, Design Technology, ~~Technology~~ and Visual Arts are strongly recommended.

~~recommended:~~

~~Candidates~~ **candidates** must present a portfolio of any kind of work that could demonstrate creativity and aptitude for the study of industrial design. **Detailed information about the portfolio requirements can be found at admissions.carleton.ca.** Attending an information session at the School is recommended.

Advanced Standing

Applications for admission ~~beyond first year to second or subsequent years~~ will be assessed on their merits and on space availability in the program. Advanced standing will be granted only for those courses that are determined to be **appropriate**. ~~appropriate and is subject to space availability:~~

Applicants will also be required to complete a portfolio which will assist in the evaluation of their suitability for the program. Detailed information about the portfolio requirements can be found at admissions.carleton.ca.

Co-op Option

Direct Admission to the First Year of the Co-op Option

Applicants must:

- 1. meet the required overall admission cut-off average and prerequisite course average. These averages may be higher than the stated minimum requirements;
- 2. be registered as a full-time student in the Industrial Design program;
- 3. be eligible for work in Canada (for off-campus work placements).

Meeting the above requirements only establishes eligibility for admission to the program. The prevailing job market may limit enrolment in the co-op option.

Note: continuation requirements for students previously admitted to the co-op option and admission requirements for the co-op option after beginning the program are described in the Co-operative Education Regulations section of this Calendar.

New Resources	No New Resources
Summary	With J. Sugar: implementing new Admissions Information paragraph which is common to all program admission pages; improved formatting.
Rationale for change	New boilerplate language has been written and inserted into all the degree-specific admission pages. Language and formatting clean-up throughout.
Transition/Implementation	
Program reviewer comments	

Key: 1369

Date Submitted: 10/21/21 4:42 pm

Viewing: **TBD-1375 : R-ADM-Program-B.J.**

Last approved: 03/22/19 9:37 am

Last edit: 10/21/21 4:42 pm

Last modified by: nataliephelan

Changes proposed by: nataliephelan

In Workflow

1. REGS ADM Review
2. PRE SCCASP
3. SCCASP
4. Senate
5. PRE CalEditor
6. CalEditor

Approval Path

1. 10/22/21 9:38 am
Jen Sugar (jensugar):
Approved for REGS ADM Review
2. 10/27/21 3:22 pm
Natalie Phelan (nataliephelan):
Approved for PRE SCCASP
3. 11/02/21 5:16 pm
Erika Strathearn (erikastrathearn):
Approved for SCCASP

History

1. Jan 21, 2016 by Sandra Bauer (sandrabauer)
2. Mar 22, 2019 by Mike Labreque (mikelabreque)

Calendar Pages Using this Program

[Journalism](#)
[Journalism](#)

Effective Date	2022-23
Workflow	majormod
Program Code	TBD-1375
Level	Undergraduate
Faculty	Not Applicable
Academic Unit	Regulations: Admissions
Degree	

Title

R-ADM-Program-B.J.

Program Requirements

Admissions Information

Admission requirements are based on the Ontario High School System. Prospective students can view the admission requirements through the Admissions website at admissions.carleton.ca. The overall average required for admission is determined each year on a program-by-program basis. Holding the minimum admission requirements only establishes eligibility for consideration; higher averages are required for admission to programs for which the demand for places by qualified applicants exceeds the number of places available. All programs have limited enrolment and admission is not guaranteed. Some programs may also require specific course prerequisites and prerequisite averages and/or supplementary admission portfolios. Consult admissions.carleton.ca for further details.

~~Degree • B.J. (Honours) Admission Requirements First Year The Ontario Secondary School Diploma (OSSD) or equivalent including a minimum of six 4U or M courses. The six 4U or M courses must include 4U English. The Bachelor of Journalism with a Concentration in Health Sciences must also include one 4U Math and either 4U Chemistry or 4U Biology.~~ Note: Courses listed as *recommended* are not mandatory for admission. Students who do not follow the recommendations will not be disadvantaged in the admission process.

Degree

- B.J. (Honours)

Admission Requirements

First Year

The Ontario Secondary School Diploma (OSSD) or equivalent including a minimum of six 4U or M courses. The six 4U or M courses must include 4U English. The Bachelor of Journalism with a Concentration in Health Sciences must also include one 4U Math, ~~Math~~ and either 4U Chemistry or 4U Biology.

Note: Students who already hold an undergraduate degree in another field are not eligible to apply for the B.J. (Honours) program. These students should consult the information on the Master of Journalism or the Master of Arts in Communication in the [Faculty of Graduate Studies and Research Calendar](#). ~~Calendar~~.

Advanced Standing

The School also maintains a number of places in second year for students who wish to transfer from Carleton or elsewhere. Normally, offers are made to students with an overall CGPA of **9.00 (B+)** ~~10.00 (A-)~~ or higher.

Transferring from the B.J.Hum. to the B.J. or B.Hum. Degree

A student who wishes to transfer from the B.J.Hum. to the B.J. or the B.Hum. may apply through Admissions, and will be accepted if, upon entry to the new program, they would be *Eligible to Continue (EC)* in the new degree program.

New Resources

No New Resources

Summary

With J. Sugar: implementing new Admissions Information paragraph which is common to all

program admission pages; improved formatting.

Rationale for change

New boilerplate language has been written and inserted into all the degree-specific admission pages. Language and formatting clean-up throughout.

Transition/Implementation

Program reviewer
comments

Key: 1375

Date Submitted: 10/21/21 4:43 pm

Viewing: **TBD-1376 : R-ADM-Program-B.J.Hum.**

Last approved: 01/21/16 3:46 pm

Last edit: 10/21/21 4:43 pm

Last modified by: nataliephelan

Changes proposed by: nataliephelan

In Workflow

1. REGS ADM Review
2. PRE SCCASP
3. SCCASP
4. Senate
5. PRE CalEditor
6. CalEditor

Approval Path

1. 10/22/21 9:38 am
Jen Sugar (jensugar):
Approved for REGS ADM Review
2. 10/27/21 3:22 pm
Natalie Phelan
(nataliephelan):
Approved for PRE SCCASP
3. 11/02/21 5:17 pm
Erika Strathearn
(erikastrathearn):
Approved for SCCASP

History

1. Jan 21, 2016 by Sandra Bauer (sandrabauer)

Calendar Pages Using this Program

[Journalism and Humanities](#)
[Journalism and Humanities](#)

Effective Date	2022-23
Workflow	majormod
Program Code	TBD-1376
Level	Undergraduate
Faculty	Not Applicable
Academic Unit	Regulations: Admissions
Degree	
Title	R-ADM-Program-B.J.Hum.

Program Requirements

Admissions Information

Admission requirements are based on the Ontario High School System. Prospective students can view the admission requirements through the Admissions website at admissions.carleton.ca. The overall average required for admission is determined each year on a program-by-program basis. Holding the minimum admission requirements only establishes eligibility for consideration; higher averages are required for admission to programs for which the demand for places by qualified applicants exceeds the number of places available. All programs have limited enrolment and admission is not guaranteed. Some programs may also require specific course prerequisites and prerequisite averages and/or supplementary admission portfolios. Consult admissions.carleton.ca for further details.

~~Degree Bachelor of Journalism and Humanities (B.J.Hum.) (Honours) First Year The Ontario Secondary School Diploma (OSSD) or equivalent including a minimum of six 4U or M courses. The six 4U or M courses must include 4U English.~~ **Note: Courses listed as recommended are not mandatory for admission. Students who do not follow the recommendations will not be disadvantaged in the admission process.**

Degree

- Bachelor of Journalism and Humanities (B.J.Hum.) (Honours)

First Year

The Ontario Secondary School Diploma (OSSD) or equivalent including a minimum of six 4U or M courses. The six 4U or M courses must include 4U English.

Note: students who already hold an undergraduate degree are not eligible to apply for the B.J.Hum. (Honours).

Advanced Standing/Transfer into the Second Year of the B.J.Hum.

~~Advanced Standing The B.J.Hum. The school (Honours)~~ maintains a number of places in second year for students who wish to transfer from Carleton or elsewhere. ~~Transfers into higher years will not be considered.~~ Normally, offers are made to students with an overall CGPA **equivalent to 9.00 (B+) of 10.00 (A-)** or higher. **Transfer also requires a Core Humanities CGPA of at least 6.00. An additional year may be necessary for transfer students to complete their degree requirements. Transfers into higher years will not be considered.**

New Resources	No New Resources
Summary	With J. Sugar: implementing new Admissions Information paragraph which is common to all program admission pages; improved formatting.
Rationale for change	New boilerplate language has been written and inserted into all the degree-specific admission pages. Language and formatting clean-up throughout.
Transition/Implementation	
Program reviewer comments	

Date Submitted: 10/21/21 4:44 pm

Viewing: **TBD-1377 : R-ADM-Program-B.Mus.**

Last approved: 05/26/21 11:11 am

Last edit: 10/21/21 4:44 pm

Last modified by: nataliephelan

Changes proposed by: nataliephelan

In Workflow

- 1. REGS ADM Review
- 2. PRE SCCASP
- 3. SCCASP
- 4. Senate
- 5. PRE CalEditor
- 6. CalEditor

Approval Path

- 1. 10/22/21 9:38 am
Jen Sugar (jensugar):
Approved for REGS ADM Review
- 2. 10/27/21 3:22 pm
Natalie Phelan (nataliephelan):
Approved for PRE SCCASP
- 3. 11/02/21 5:17 pm
Erika Strathearn (erikastrathearn):
Approved for SCCASP

History

- 1. Jan 21, 2016 by Sandra Bauer (sandrabauer)
- 2. May 26, 2021 by Natalie Phelan (nataliephelan)

Calendar Pages Using this Program	Music Music
Effective Date	2022-23
Workflow	majormod minormod
Program Code	TBD-1377
Level	Undergraduate
Faculty	Not Applicable
Academic Unit	Regulations: Admissions
Degree	

Title

R-ADM-Program-B.Mus.

Program Requirements

Admissions Information

Admission requirements are based on the Ontario High School System. Prospective students can view the admission requirements through the Admissions website at admissions.carleton.ca. The overall average required for admission is determined each year on a program-by-program basis. Holding the minimum admission requirements only establishes eligibility for consideration; higher averages are required for admission to programs for which the demand for places by qualified applicants exceeds the number of places available. ~~Degree B.Mus.(Honours) Admission Requirements First Year The Ontario Secondary School Diploma (OSSD) or equivalent including a minimum of six 4U or M courses.~~ **All programs have limited enrolment and Although it is not an admission is not guaranteed. requirement, a 4U course in English is recommended. Some programs may also require specific course prerequisites and prerequisite averages and/or supplementary admission portfolios. Consult admissions.carleton.ca for further details.**

Note: Courses listed as *recommended* are not mandatory for admission. Students who do not follow the recommendations will not be disadvantaged in the admission process.

Degree

- B.Mus. (Honours)

Admission Requirements

First Year

The Ontario Secondary School Diploma (OSSD) or equivalent including a minimum of six 4U or M courses. Although it is not an admission requirement, a 4U course in English is recommended. ~~courses.~~

Note: An audition is required; for more information on the audition, consult admissions.carleton.ca.

Advanced Standing

Applications for admission beyond first year will be assessed on their merits. Applicants must normally be *Eligible to Continue* in their year level, in addition to meeting the GPA thresholds described in Section 3.1.10 of the *Academic Regulations of the University*. Advanced standing will be granted only for those courses assessed as being appropriate for the program selected.

~~An audition is required. Advanced Standing Students transferring into the Bachelor of Music with first, second, or third year standing must have achieved a major CGPA of 6.00 (C+) or higher and an overall CGPA of 5.00 (C) or higher. Students beginning the final 5.0 credits towards the Bachelor of Music degree must have achieved a major CGPA of 6.50 (C+/B-) or higher and an overall CGPA of 5.00 (C) or higher.~~

New Resources	No New Resources
Summary	With J. Sugar: implementing new Admissions Information paragraph which is common to all program admission pages; reworded Advanced Standing section to refer to chart showing minimum CGPA thresholds; improved formatting.
Rationale for change	New boilerplate language has been written and inserted into all the degree-specific

admission pages. The advanced standing section has been rewritten to incorporate ACE terminology and to include a link to the academic regulations so that minimum CGPA thresholds are accessible.

Transition/Implementation

Program reviewer
comments

Key: 1377

Date Submitted: 10/21/21 4:43 pm

Viewing: **TBD-1378 : R-ADM-Program-B.P.A.P.M.**

Last approved: 05/11/21 2:37 pm

Last edit: 10/25/21 10:56 am

Last modified by: nataliephelan

Changes proposed by: nataliephelan

In Workflow

- 1. REGS ADM Review
- 2. PRE SCCASP
- 3. SCCASP
- 4. Senate
- 5. PRE CalEditor
- 6. CalEditor

Approval Path

- 1. 10/22/21 9:38 am
Jen Sugar (jensugar):
Approved for REGS ADM Review
- 2. 10/27/21 3:22 pm
Natalie Phelan (nataliephelan):
Approved for PRE SCCASP
- 3. 11/02/21 5:17 pm
Erika Strathearn (erikastrathearn):
Approved for SCCASP

History

- 1. Jan 21, 2016 by Sandra Bauer (sandrabauer)
- 2. Apr 18, 2017 by Sandra Bauer (sandrabauer)
- 3. May 11, 2021 by Natalie Phelan (nataliephelan)

Calendar Pages Using this Program	Public Affairs and Policy Management Public Affairs and Policy Management
Effective Date	2022-23
Workflow	majormod minormod
Program Code	TBD-1378
Level	Undergraduate
Faculty	Not Applicable
Academic Unit	Regulations: Admissions

Degree

Title R-ADM-Program-B.P.A.P.M.

Program Requirements

Admissions Information

Admission requirements are based on the Ontario High School System. Prospective students can view the admission requirements through the Admissions website at admissions.carleton.ca. The overall average required for admission is determined each year on a program-by-program basis. Holding the minimum ~~Advanced Standing~~ Applications for admission requirements only establishes eligibility for consideration; higher averages are required for admission ~~with advanced standing~~ to programs for which the demand for places ~~the program will be evaluated individually~~ by qualified applicants exceeds the number of places available. ~~the Program Management Committee~~. All programs have limited enrolment and admission is not guaranteed. Some programs may also require specific course prerequisites and prerequisite averages and/or supplementary admission portfolios. Consult admissions.carleton.ca for further details.

Note: Courses listed as *recommended* are not mandatory for admission. Students who do not follow the recommendations will not be disadvantaged in the admission process.

Degree

- B.P.A.P.M. (Honours)

Admission Requirements

First Year

The Ontario Secondary School Diploma (OSSD) or equivalent including a minimum of six 4U or M courses.

~~Advanced Standing Applications for admission with advanced standing to the program will be evaluated individually by the Program Management Committee.~~ Advanced **Standing**

~~Applications standing will be granted only for admission with advanced standing those courses deemed to be appropriate to the program will be assessed on their merits. program: On admission, students will not receive credit for courses graded below C-. Normally, offers are made Continuation to second-year will be guaranteed only to those students with who have an overall CGPA of 9.00 (B+) 7.00 or higher. higher and a grade of B- or higher in PAPM 1001. Students must also present at least one of the following: ECON 1001, ECON 1002, or a second-year Political Science course with a minimum grade of B.~~

Advanced standing will be granted only for those courses deemed appropriate to the program. Students ~~On admission, students~~ will not receive credit for courses graded below C-.

Co-op Option

Direct Admission to the first year of the Co-op Option

Applicants must:

1. meet the required overall admission cut-off average and/or prerequisite course average. These averages may be higher than the stated minimum requirements;

2. be registered as a full-time student in the B.P.A.P.M. (**Honours**) program;
3. be eligible to work in Canada (for off-campus work placements).

Meeting the above requirements only establishes eligibility for admission to the program. The prevailing job market may limit enrolment in the co-op option.

Note: ~~Note:~~ continuation requirements for students previously admitted to the co-op option and admission requirements for the co-op option after beginning the program are described in the Co-operative Education Regulations section of this Calendar.

New Resources	No New Resources
Summary	<p>With J. Sugar: implementing new Admissions Information paragraph which is common to all program admission pages; improved formatting.</p> <p>In consultation with M. Francoli and D. Mendeloff, adding the Honours moniker to BPAPM so that it's clear that this is an honours degree, and for consistency with other calendar pages. Adding the word Honours makes it clear that this specialised four year degree is clearly identified as an honours program, and matches the existing naming convention found in the BJ, BHUM, BMus, BSW programs.</p>
Rationale for change	New boilerplate language has been written and inserted into all the degree-specific admission pages. Language and formatting clean-up throughout.
Transition/Implementation	

Program reviewer comments	
---------------------------	--

Key: 1378

Date Submitted: 10/21/21 4:43 pm

Viewing: **TBD-1379 : R-ADM-Program-B.S.W.**

Last approved: 01/21/16 4:09 pm

Last edit: 10/21/21 4:43 pm

Last modified by: nataliephelan

Changes proposed by: nataliephelan

In Workflow

- 1. REGS ADM Review
- 2. PRE SCCASP
- 3. SCCASP
- 4. Senate
- 5. PRE CalEditor
- 6. CalEditor

Approval Path

- 1. 10/22/21 9:38 am
Jen Sugar (jensugar):
Approved for REGS ADM Review
- 2. 10/27/21 3:22 pm
Natalie Phelan (nataliephelan):
Approved for PRE SCCASP
- 3. 11/02/21 5:17 pm
Erika Strathearn (erikastrathearn):
Approved for SCCASP

History

- 1. Jan 21, 2016 by Sandra Bauer (sandrabauer)

Calendar Pages Using this Program	Social Work Social Work
Effective Date	2022-23
Workflow	majormod
Program Code	TBD-1379
Level	Undergraduate
Faculty	Not Applicable
Academic Unit	Regulations: Admissions
Degree	
Title	R-ADM-Program-B.S.W.

Program Requirements

Admissions Information

Admission requirements are based on the Ontario High School System. Prospective students can view the admission requirements through the Admissions website at admissions.carleton.ca. The overall average required for admission is determined each year on a program-by-program basis. Holding the minimum admission requirements only establishes eligibility for consideration; higher averages are required for admission to programs for which the demand for places by qualified applicants exceeds the number of places available. All programs have limited enrolment and admission is not guaranteed. Some programs may also require specific course prerequisites and prerequisite averages and/or supplementary admission portfolios. Consult admissions.carleton.ca for further details.

Note: Courses listed as *recommended* are not mandatory for admission. Students who do not follow the recommendations will not be disadvantaged in the admission process.

Degree

- B.S.W. (Honours)

Admission Requirements

First Year

The Ontario Secondary School Diploma (OSSD) or equivalent including a minimum of six 4U or M **courses**. **Although it is not an admission requirement, a 4U course in English is strongly recommended.** ~~courses.~~

~~Although it is not an admission requirement, a 4U course in English is strongly recommended.~~ Preference will be given to applicants with human service work experience, which may be met by employment and/or volunteer experience. Applicants will be **asked requested** to complete a **supplementary application personal information document** that will assist in the evaluation of their suitability for the program. **Detailed information about the supplementary application can be found at admissions.carleton.ca.**

Advanced Standing

Applications ~~Students who meet the Faculty Honours continuation standards will be considered~~ for **admission beyond first transfer into the second year will be assessed on their merits. of the B.S.W. Applicants must normally be Eligible to Continue (EC) in their year level, and will be considered for transfer into the B.S.W. program when spaces are available.** ~~are available.~~ **Students who have completed an undergraduate degree are are** normally admitted into the **program program** with **third-year standing. Applicants will be asked to complete a supplementary application that will assist in the evaluation of their suitability for the program. Third-year standing.** **Detailed information about the supplementary application can be found at admissions.carleton.ca.**

Community College Applicants

Pathway Articulation agreements between the School of Social **Work Work** at Carleton University and several community colleges have been negotiated to facilitate the application of their graduates in their human or social service worker programs to Carleton's Bachelor of Social **Work degree. Work.** **Detailed information about these agreements can be found on the Admissions website: admissions.carleton.ca.**

New Resources	No New Resources
Summary	With J. Sugar: implementing new Admissions Information paragraph which is common to all program admission pages; improved formatting.
Rationale for change	New boilerplate language has been written and inserted into all the degree-specific admission pages. Language and formatting clean-up throughout.
Transition/Implementation	

Program reviewer comments	
---------------------------	--

Key: 1379

Date Submitted: 10/21/21 4:37 pm

Viewing: **TBD-1374 : R-ADM-Program-B.Sc.**

Last approved: 03/26/21 10:58 am

Last edit: 10/21/21 4:37 pm

Last modified by: nataliephelan

Changes proposed by: nataliephelan

In Workflow

1. REGS ADM Review
2. PRE SCCASP
3. SCCASP
4. Senate
5. PRE CalEditor
6. CalEditor

Approval Path

1. 10/22/21 9:38 am
Jen Sugar (jensugar):
Approved for REGS ADM Review
2. 10/27/21 3:22 pm
Natalie Phelan (nataliephelan):
Approved for PRE SCCASP
3. 11/02/21 5:17 pm
Erika Strathearn (erikastrathearn):
Approved for SCCASP

History

1. Jan 21, 2016 by Sandra Bauer (sandrabauer)
2. Mar 29, 2016 by Janice O'Farrell (janiceofarrell)
3. Mar 22, 2019 by Jen Sugar (jensugar)
4. Apr 17, 2019 by Mike Labreque (mikelabreque)
5. Mar 26, 2021 by Sarah Cleary (sarahcleary)

Calendar Pages Using this Program

[Geography](#)
[Physics](#)
[Neuroscience](#)
[Nanoscience](#)
[Biochemistry](#)
[Earth Sciences](#)
[Environmental Science](#)
[Biotechnology](#)
[Geomatics](#)
[Chemistry](#)

[Psychology](#)
[Biology](#)
[Mathematics and Statistics](#)
[Food Science](#)
[Interdisciplinary Science and Practice](#)
[Linguistics \(Bachelor of Science\)](#)
[Linguistics](#)
[Open Studies](#)
[Science](#)

Effective Date	2022-23
Workflow	majormod minormod
Program Code	TBD-1374
Level	Undergraduate
Faculty	Not Applicable
Academic Unit	Regulations: Admissions
Degree	
Title	R-ADM-Program-B.Sc.

Program Requirements

Admissions Information

Admission requirements are based on the Ontario High School System. Prospective students can view the admission requirements through the Admissions website at admissions.carleton.ca. The overall average required for admission is determined each year on a program-by-program basis. Holding ~~A student beginning~~ the minimum admission requirements only establishes eligibility for consideration; ~~final 5.0 credits towards an Honours degree must present a major CGPA of 6.50 or higher averages are required for admission to programs for which the demand for places by qualified applicants exceeds the number of places available. and an overall CGPA of 5.00 or higher, as calculated for graduation.~~ All programs have limited enrolment and admission is not guaranteed. Some programs may also require specific course prerequisites and prerequisite averages and/or supplementary admission portfolios. Consult admissions.carleton.ca for further details.

Note: Courses listed as *recommended* are not mandatory for admission. Students who do not follow the recommendations will not be disadvantaged in the admission process.

Degrees

- B.Sc. (Honours)
- B.Sc. (Major)
- B.Sc.

Admission Requirements

B. Sc. ~~Honours Program~~ **Honours**

First Year

The Ontario Secondary School Diploma (OSSD) or equivalent including a minimum of six 4U or M courses. For most programs including Biochemistry, Bioinformatics, Biotechnology, Chemistry, Combined Honours in Biology and Physics, Chemistry and Physics, Computational Biochemistry, Food Science, Nanoscience, ~~Neuroscience~~, Neuroscience and **Biology, Neuroscience** ~~Mental Health~~, and **Mental Health, and** Psychology, the six 4U or M courses must include Advanced **Functions, and Functions** ~~and~~ two of **Biology, Biology**, Chemistry, Earth ~~and~~ and Space **Sciences, Sciences** or Physics. (Calculus and Vectors is strongly recommended).

~~Specific Honours Admission Requirements~~ Specific For the Honours Admission Requirements

For the Honours programs in Earth Sciences, Environmental Science, Geomatics, Interdisciplinary Science and Practice, and Physical Geography, Calculus and Vectors may be substituted for Advanced Functions.

For the Honours programs in Physics and Applied **Physics, Physics** and for double Honours in Mathematics and **Physics, Physics**, Calculus and Vectors is required in addition to Advanced Functions and one of 4U **Physics, Physics** Chemistry, Biology, or Earth and Space Sciences. For all programs in Physics, 4U Physics is strongly recommended.

~~For the Combined Honours program in Chemistry and Computer Science, 4U Chemistry and Calculus and Vectors are strongly recommended.~~ For Honours in Psychology, a 4U course in English is recommended.

For Honours in Environmental Science, a 4U course in Biology and Chemistry is recommended.

Advanced Standing

Applications for admission beyond first year will be assessed on their merits. Applicants must normally be *Eligible to Continue* in their year level, in addition to meeting the GPA thresholds described in Section 3.1.10 of the Academic Regulations of the University. ~~Advanced Standing For entry to an Honours program after the completion of 5.0 included credits, a student must have a major CGPA of 5.50 or higher, an overall CGPA of 4.50 or higher and the recommendation of the Honours department or committee. A student beginning the final 10.0 credits towards an Honours degree must present a major CGPA of 6.00 or higher, an overall CGPA of 5.00 or higher and the recommendation of the Honours department or committee. A student beginning the final 5.0 credits towards an Honours degree must present a major CGPA of 6.50 or higher and an overall CGPA of 5.00 or higher, as calculated for graduation. Advanced standing will be granted **only** for **those studies undertaken elsewhere when these are recognized as the equivalent of** subjects **deemed appropriate for the program and stream selected.** ~~offered at Carleton University.~~~~

B.Sc. ~~Major Program~~ B.Sc. Program Major and B.Sc.

First Year

The Ontario Secondary School Diploma (OSSD) or equivalent including a minimum of six 4U or M courses. The six 4U or M courses must include Advanced Functions and two of Calculus and Vectors, Biology, Chemistry, Earth and Space **Science, Science** or Physics (Calculus and Vectors is strongly recommended). For the B.Sc. ~~Major in Physics~~ **Major in Physics**, 4U Physics is strongly **recommended**.

~~recommended.~~

Advanced Standing

Applications for admission beyond first year will be assessed on their merits. Applicants must normally be *Eligible to Continue (EC)* in their year level. ~~Equivalent courses may be substituted between the old and new Ontario mathematics curriculum. Advanced Standing For entry to a B.Sc. or B.Sc. Major program after the completion of 5.0 included credits, a student must have a major and core CGPA of 3.50 or higher and an overall CGPA of 3.50 or higher. A student beginning the final 5.0 credits towards a B.Sc. or B.Sc. Major degree must present a major and core CGPA of 4.00 or higher and an overall~~

~~CGPA of 4.00 or higher, as calculated for graduation.~~ Advanced standing will be granted **only** for **those studies undertaken elsewhere when these are recognized as the equivalent of** subjects **deemed appropriate for the program and stream selected.** ~~offered at Carleton University.~~

Co-op Option

Direct Admission to the First Year of the Co-op Option

Applicants must:

1. meet the required overall admission cut-off average and prerequisite course average. These averages may be higher than the stated minimum requirements;
2. be registered as a full-time student in the Bachelor of Science Honours program;
3. be eligible to work in Canada (for off-campus work placements).

Note that meeting the above requirements only establishes eligibility for admission to the program. The prevailing job market may limit enrolment in the co-op option.

Note: ~~Note:~~ continuation requirements for students previously admitted to the co-op option and admission requirements for the co-op option after beginning the program are described in the Co-operative Education Regulations section of this Calendar.

New Resources

No New Resources

Summary

With J. Sugar: implementing new Admissions Information paragraph which is common to all program admission pages; reworded Advanced Standing section to refer to chart showing minimum CGPA thresholds; improved formatting.

Rationale for change

New boilerplate language has been written and inserted into all the degree-specific admission pages. The advanced standing section has been rewritten to incorporate ACE terminology and to include a link to the academic regulations so that minimum CGPA thresholds are accessible.

Transition/Implementation

Program reviewer
comments

Key: 1374

Date Submitted: 10/21/21 4:45 pm

Viewing: **TBD-1547 : R-ADM-Program-BMPD**

Last approved: 04/06/18 10:20 am

Last edit: 10/21/21 4:45 pm

Last modified by: nataliephelan

Changes proposed by: nataliephelan

In Workflow

- 1. REGS ADM Review
- 2. PRE SCCASP
- 3. SCCASP
- 4. Senate
- 5. PRE CalEditor
- 6. CalEditor

Approval Path

- 1. 10/22/21 9:38 am
Jen Sugar (jensugar):
Approved for REGS ADM Review
- 2. 10/27/21 3:22 pm
Natalie Phelan (nataliephelan):
Approved for PRE SCCASP
- 3. 11/02/21 5:17 pm
Erika Strathearn (erikastrathearn):
Approved for SCCASP

History

- 1. Apr 5, 2017 by Sandra Bauer (sandrabauer)
- 2. Apr 6, 2018 by Mike Labreque (mikelabreque)
- 3. Apr 6, 2018 by Mike Labreque (mikelabreque)

Calendar Pages Using this Program	Media Production and Design Media Production and Design
Effective Date	2022-23
Workflow	majormod minormod
Program Code	TBD-1547
Level	Undergraduate
Faculty	Faculty of Public Affairs
Academic Unit	School of Journalism and Communication (JOUR)

Regulations: Admissions

Degree Bachelor of Media Production and Design

Title R-ADM-Program-BMPD

Program Requirements

Admissions Information

Admission requirements are based on the Ontario High School System. Prospective students can view the admission requirements through the Admissions website at admissions.carleton.ca. The overall average required for admission is determined each year on a program-by-program basis. Holding the minimum admission requirements only establishes eligibility for consideration; higher averages are required for admission to programs for which the demand for places by qualified applicants exceeds the number of places available. All programs have limited enrolment and admission is not guaranteed. Some programs may also require specific course prerequisites and prerequisite averages and/or supplementary admission portfolios. Consult admissions.carleton.ca for further details.

Note: Courses listed as *recommended* are not mandatory for admission. Students who do not follow the recommendations will not be disadvantaged in the admission process.

Degree

- Bachelor of Media Production and Design (B.M.P.D. Honours)

Admission Requirements

First Year

The Ontario Secondary School Diploma (OSSD) or equivalent including a minimum of six 4U or M courses. The six 4U or M courses must include English and one of Advanced **Functions**, ~~Functions~~ or Calculus and **Vectors**, ~~Vectors~~ or Mathematics of Data Management. Advanced Functions is recommended.

Advanced Standing

Applications for admission to the second or subsequent years will be assessed on their merits. **Applicants must normally be Eligible to Continue in their year level, in addition to meeting the GPA thresholds described in Section 3.1.10 of the Academic Regulations of the University. Advanced** ~~Advanced~~ standing will be granted only for those **assessed** ~~courses that are determined~~ to be **appropriate for the program.** ~~appropriate.~~

Co-op Option -

Direct Admission to the First Year of the Co-op Option

Applicants must:

1. meet the required overall admission cut-off average and prerequisite course average. These averages may be higher than the stated minimum requirements;
2. be registered as a full-time student in the Bachelor of Media Production and Design program;
3. be eligible to work in Canada (for off-campus work placements).

Meeting the above requirements only establishes eligibility for admission to the program. The prevailing job market (and thus the availability of co-op placement) may limit enrolment in the co-op option.

Note: ~~Note:~~ continuation requirements for students previously admitted to the co-op option and admission requirements for the co-op option after beginning the program are described in the Co-operative Education Regulations section of this Calendar.

New Resources	No New Resources
Summary	With J. Sugar: implementing new Admissions Information paragraph which is common to all program admission pages; reworded Advanced Standing section to refer to chart showing minimum CGPA thresholds; improved formatting.
Rationale for change	New boilerplate language has been written and inserted into all the degree-specific admission pages. The advanced standing section has been rewritten to incorporate ACE terminology and to include a link to the academic regulations so that minimum CGPA thresholds are accessible.
Transition/Implementation	

Program reviewer comments	
---------------------------	--

Key: 1547